HOUSING DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINT

Inquiry Number
Title VIII Case Number
HUD Date Filed

1. Complainants

Fair Housing Center of Central Indiana
Attn: Amy Nelson, Executive Director
429 N. Pennsylvania St., Suite 401

Indianapolis, IN 46204

Fair Housing Center of Metropolitan Detroit
Attn: Steve Tomkowiak, Executive Director

5555 Conner St., Suite 2244
Detroit, MI 48213-3487

Miami Valley Fair Housing Center, Inc.
Attn: Jim McCarthy, President/CEO

505 Riverside Drive

Dayton, OH 45405

2. Other Aggrieved Parties

None.

3. The following is alleged to have occurred or is about to occur:

Discriminatory denial or refusal to rent
Discriminatory terms, conditions, privileges, or services and facilities
Discriminatory notice, statement, or advertisement with respect to rental

4. The alleged violation occurred because of:
Race; Color
5. Addresses and locations of the properties in question:

Apartment Name

Owner Name(s)/Address(es)

Registered Agent(s)

Auburn Heights
Apartments

44 Birwoode Lane
Pontiac, MI 48340
248-373-0430

Cherry Apartments Limited
Partnership

727 South Orange Ave.
Sarasota, FL 34236

The Corporation
Company

40600 Ann Arbor Road
East, Suite 201
Plymouth, M1 48170



Barrington Square
Apartments

2325 Marlborough Ct.
Columbus, OH 43229
614-350-0133

Carnaby Village
Townhomes

5951 Parliament Dr.
Columbus, OH 43213
614-861-6339

Four Winds Apartments
2601 Morning Star Lane
Anderson, IN 46011
765-640-8640

Horizon Apartments
4955 Red Horizon
Blvd.,

Indianapolis, IN 46221
317-856-5256

Raccoon Creek
Apartments

3819 Plane Tree Dr. W.
Columbus, OH 43228
614-279-8697
Somerford Square
Apartments

1250 Sheridan Dr.
Lancaster, OH 43130
740-653-2961

Sussex Square
Apartments

1307 Yorkland Rd.,
Columbus, OH 43232
614-864-1172

Wind Song Apartments
860 Walton Blvd.
Pontiac, M1 48340
248-373-6110

Additional Respondents

Barrington Square Purchase
Company LLC

c/o The Barrington Group Inc.

727 S. Orange Ave.

Sarasota, FL 34236

Carnaby Associates LLC

c/o The Barrington Group Inc
727 S. Orange Ave.

Sarasota, FL 34236

Anderson Apts LLC
Barrington Group Inc.
727 South Orange Ave.
Sarasota, FL 34236

White River Associates Limited

Partnership

c/o Barrington Group Inc.
727 S. Orange Ave.
Sarasota, FL 34236
BGBR LLC

c/o The Barrington Group Inc.

727 S. Orange Ave.
Sarasota, FL 34236

Somerford Square Purchase
Company LLC

c/o The Barrington Group Inc.

727 S. Orange Ave.
Sarasota, FL 34236
Sussex Square Purchase Co.

c/o The Barrington Group Inc.

727 S. Orange Ave.
Sarasota, FL 34236

Brewer Windsong, L.L.C.
115 W. Brown Street
Birmingham, M1 48009

The Barrington Group, Incorporated

727 S. Orange Ave.
Sarasota, FLL 34236

Richard S. Rivitz

1301 E. 9™ St., Suite
2600

Cleveland, OH 44114

The Barrington Group
Inc.

846 S. High St.
Columbus, OH 43206

Jessica Findley

9100 Keystone
Crossing, Suite 870
Indianapolis, IN 46240
Ronda Grote

4738 Manstield Dr.
Indianapolis, IN 46241

Taft Service Solutions
Corp.

425 Walnut St., Suite
1800

Cincinnati, OH 45202
Taft Service Solutions
Corp.

425 Walnut St., Suite
1800

Cincinnati, OH 45202
Taft Service Solutions
Corp.

425 Walnut St., Suite
1800

Cincinnati, OH 45202
Barabara A. Brewer
115 W. Brown Street
Birmingham, M1 48009



The following is a brief and concise statement of the facts regarding the alleged
violation:

The missions of Complainants Fair Housing Center of Central Indiana, Fair Housing
Center of Metropolitan Detroit, and Miami Valley Fair Housing Center (collectively
“Complainants”), individually and collectively, are to facilitate open housing for all.

Fair Housing Center of Central Indiana

The Fair Housing Center of Central Indiana (“FHCCI”) is a private, nonprofit organization
located in Indianapolis, IN. Its mission is to facilitate open housing for all people by
ensuring the availability of affordable and accessible housing; promoting housing choice
and homeownership; advocating for an inclusive housing market; working toward stable
and equitable communities; and eradicating discrimination within Central Indiana, the
State of Indiana, and nationally.

Beginning in March 2023, the FHCCI located rental requirements on Respondents’ Indiana
properties on their respective websites. At both properties, under the “Criminal Screening”
section of their rental criteria, it stated, “Misdemeanor convictions may result in denial of
the rental application. We absolutely will not accept anyone with a felony conviction.”
(This language is still located on Respondents’ Indiana properties as of this complaint filing
date.)

After locating this language and reviewing HUD’s guidance on overly restrictive criminal
history policies, the FHCCI opened an investigation. In September and October 2023, the
FHCCI used testers to determine if the Respondents’ rental requirements were in fact used
to deny prospective tenants with justice involvement.

Horizons Apartments. On September 29, 2023, an FHCCI tester visited and told the
Horizons Apartments agent that she had a Level 6 felony from nine years ago for narcotics
possession and added that she had knee surgery and developed a dependence on the
prescription as a result but had not had issues since the incident. The agent told the tester
she would not be accepted. On October 10, 2023, an FHCCI tester visited and told the
Horizons Apartments agent that she had a Level 6 felony from eight years ago for
possession of a controlled substance and added that she got prescribed painkillers due to a
car accident but has had the addiction under control for years. The agent then told the tester
that she would be denied, but she added that she did not agree with the “no felony” policy
because it denies many people who are long past their problems.

On February 7, 2024, an FHCCI staff member conducted an investigative call to Horizon
Apartments, posing as a volunteer social worker for a local church to ask about their tenant
screening policies. After the FHCCI staff member asked about tenant screening policies,
the agent said that they do not approve felonies whatsoever. The agent even elaborated that
this is all directly from ownership and communicated to them from the screening company.
The agent also explained that misdemeanors can also be denied and provided examples in



the past of denying an applicant with a misdemeanor due to violation of protective order,
trespassing, drugs, or violence.

On April 26, 2024, an FHCCI tester called and told the Horizons Apartments that she had
a Class A misdemeanor from about five years ago for narcotics possession and that she has
been four years sober since the incident. The agent told the tester that anything that shows
up during a background check during application process that indicates drug use or
violence would disqualify her, ultimately denying her ability to live at the complex.

Four Winds Apartments. On January 29, 2024, an FHCCI staff member conducted an
investigative call to Four Winds Apartments, posing as a volunteer social worker at a local
church to ask about their tenant screening policies. When asked about what is generally
required, the agent responded that applicants must have no felonies. The FHCCI staff
member clarified if misdemeanors would be accepted, and the agent said that they do not
accept misdemeanor drug charges or violence against other people and, again, no felonies.
The agent then said, “Listen, it's crazy,” and continued to explain of a recent situation in
which she had to deny someone for having a charge related to non-payment of child support
from 20 years ago. The agent then steered the FHCCI staff member to other nearby
properties and later added, “We have the strictest policy in town for criminal.”

On May 9, 2024, an FHCCI tester called and told the Four Winds Apartments agent that
she had a Level 6 felony for theft from seven years ago. She further explained that it was a
long time ago and that she had since turned her life around. The agent told the tester that
they do not care how long ago it was or what type of charge because they would not approve
her due to having a felony.

During its investigation, the FHCCI researched the felony conviction rates in Madison
(Anderson) and Marion (Indianapolis) counties in Indiana to determine if there was a
disparate impact against individuals with felony convictions based on race/color. The
FHCCI used data from the U.S. Census Bureau (2020) to determine the racial
demographics of each county and from the Indiana Supreme Court (2008-2023) to
calculate each county’s felony conviction rates. The FHCCI found that felony conviction
rates for Black residents were multiple times greater than rates for White, non-Hispanic
residents in Madison County (8 times greater) and Marion County (2 times greater). For
example, Black residents of Madison County have a felony conviction rate eight times
greater than the felony conviction rate for White, non-Hispanic Madison County residents
for the years 2008-2023.

Fair Housing Center of Metropolitan Detroit

The Fair Housing Center of Metropolitan Detroit (“FHCMD?”) is a private, nonprofit, tax-
exempt organization that supports and encourages equal housing opportunities in Wayne,
Oakland, Macomb, and St. Clair Counties in Michigan. The FHCMD’s mission is to ensure
equal access to housing without discrimination based on race, color, national origin,
religion, sex (including sexual orientation and gender identity), familial status, disability,



and all other protected class categories under federal, state, and local anti-discrimination
laws and ordinances.

The FHCMD participates in HUD’s Fair Housing Initiatives Program (FHIP) (42 U.S.C. §
3616a). Under the FHIP program, the FHCMD engages in testing and other investigative
activities and remedy discrimination in the private real estate market by initiating
enforcement actions as Congressionally authorized and appropriate to remedy such
violations identified though their testing and investigative activities (42 U.S.C. §
3616a(b)(1) & (2)(a)-(e)).

The FHCMD conducted a systemic investigation of The Barrington Group Incorporated’s
(d/b/a Barrington Group) (“Barrington”) policy as to rental applicants with a criminal
record.

Auburn Heights Apartments. On February 8, 2024, the FHCMD’s tester called Auburn
Heights Apartments in Pontiac. The tester introduced herself as a social worker from a local
church, assisting a church member to find housing. The agent told the FHCMD’s tester
they (i.e., Auburn Heights) had several 1 and 2-bedroom apartments available. The
FHCMD'’s tester told the agent her client had a felony conviction. The agent said to the
FHCMD'’s tester: “We do not accept anyone with felony convictions.” The FHCMD's tester
then explained to the agent that her client was 25 when the felony occurred and is now 57.
The agent said, “If it’s on his record, it would most likely result in an automatic denial.”
The FHCMD’s tester also asked if they accept people with misdemeanors. The agent said,
“If it’s on their record, then no.” The agent then said that “The general rule though, anyone
with any history at all, it could be from the ‘80s, it could be from the ‘90s, if it still shows
up on that record, we have to deny them, because it’s a fair housing property.”

On February 15, 2024, another FHCMD tester visited Auburn Heights Apartments to
inquire about a 1 or 2-bedroom apartment for his son. The agent said that they (i.e., Auburn
Heights) had several 1-bedrooms and one 2-bedroom apartment available. The agent
provided the FHCMD'’s tester with their application requirements and said they don’t allow
felony convictions. The FHCMD’s tester told the agent his son had a misdemeanor, and the
agent said, “I do think that misdemeanors still count.” The FHCMD’s tester told the agent
that his son’s misdemeanor was from over 10 years ago, and the agent said, “I think it
matters if it’s still on his record” and that, “if it still shows up then it will most likely be
denied.”

On February 15, 2024, a second FHCMD tester visited Auburn Heights Apartments to ask
about apartment availabilities for his niece. The agent told the FHCMD’s tester they do
have some 1-bedroom apartments available. She explained their application requirements
and told him, “No felonies, convictions.” The FHCMD’s tester mentioned that his niece
had a misdemeanor for marijuana possession from 9 years ago. The agent asked two other
agents in the office and was told that the misdemeanor “shouldn’t be a problem” and that
if it’s not a felony, it shouldn’t be denied. The agent then took the FHCMD’s tester to tour
a vacant ground-floor apartment. After that, the test was concluded.



FHCMD’s tester was also provided with a “Rental Approval Requirements” form, which
states under “CRIMINAL SCREENING: that “All applicants will be thoroughly screened for
criminal activity. Misdemeanor convictions may result in denial of the rental application.
We absolutely will not accept anyone with a felony conviction. . . . ” (bold face and
underlined text in original).

Windsong Apartments a/k/a Wind Song Apartments. On February 8, 2024, the FHCMD’s
tester called Wind Song Apartments in Pontiac, MI. The FHCMD’s tester also introduced
herself as a representative from a local ministry who was assisting some of their members
to find housing. The agent said they (i.e., Windsong) don’t have any 1-bedrooms available
but do have some 2-bedroom units. The FHCMD's tester explained that some of her clients
have a criminal background — both felonies and misdemeanors. After asking her property
manager, the agent said a misdemeanor and a felony are automatic denials. The FHCMD’s
tester provided additional information about the background of her client who was 25 when
the offense occurred and is now 57. After checking again with the property manager, the
agent told the FHCMD’s tester: “So yeah, if it shows up on their, like their criminal
background, the system will automatically deny them.” The FHCMD’s tester asked to
speak to the property manager and again explained her client’s criminal background. The
property manager said, “If it’s still on his record and it comes back as a denial, there isn’t
anything I can do. I can’t override it; the system will not move forward.”

On February 15, 2024, a FHCMD tester visited Windsong Apartments to ask about the
availability of a 1 or 2-bedroom apartment. The agent said they don’t have any 1-bedrooms
available but do have some 2-bedroom units. The FHCMD's tester said the apartment was
for his son. The agent went over the qualifications and said they (i.e., Windsong), “don’t
want anyone with felonies or hard misdemeanors.” The FHCMD’s tester asked what the
agent meant by hard misdemeanors, and the agent gave examples of stealing or assault.
The FHCMD’s tester said that his son had a misdemeanor for marijuana. The agent said,
“Yeah, um, okay” but did not indicate if the son would be approved.

Also, on February 15, 2024, a second tester visited Windsong Apartments. The FHCMD’s
tester said he was interested in a 1 or 2-bedroom apartment for his niece. The agent said
that they don’t have any 1-bedrooms available but would have a couple of 2-bedroom
apartments available in March. The FHCMD’s tester told the agent that 9 years ago his
niece had a misdemeanor for marijuana possession and wanted to know if that would affect
her application. After confirming that it was a misdemeanor, the agent said, “The system
will automatically decline it because it doesn’t know the difference between a felony and
a misdemeanor.” The FHCMD’s tester asked who declined the application and the agent
said, “Our system, when you apply online, it does a credit and background check. It will
automatically decline a misdemeanor and a felony.” The FHCMD’s tester explained that
the misdemeanor was for marijuana possession from 9 years ago. The agent said, “I just, I
wouldn’t know. I can’t sit here and say yes or no until we actually saw the paperwork and
then it would go to the higher-ups, and they would make the decision.”



As of August 23, 2024, Auburn Heights Apartments and Windsong Apartments each
continue to list on their websites under “Approval Requirements” and “Rental Approval
Requirements” the following:

“CRIMINAL SCREENING

All applicants will be thoroughly screened for criminal activity.
Misdemeanor convictions may result in denial of the rental application. We
absolutely will not accept anyone with a felony conviction. . . . ” (bold
face and underlined text in original)

As 0f 2021, the Michigan prison rate is 1,205 for every 100,000 Black or African American
residents, compared to 185 per 100,000 White residents. Black or African American
residents are thus over 6 times more likely to be imprisoned and released with a criminal
record.

In Michigan, as of 2022 the Black or African American population comprises 13% of the
population, while the White population comprises 73% of the population. The most recent
arrest rate in Michigan is 36.9% for Black or African American and 58.5% for White.

Pontiac is located in Oakland County, Michigan. In Oakland County, as of 2022 the Black
or African American population comprises 12.8% of the population, while the White
population comprises 69.7% of the population. As of June 2024, the Black or African
American population comprises 48% of the jail population in Oakland County, while the
White population comprises 50% of the jail population.

Miami Valley Fair Housing Center

The Miami Valley Fair Housing Center (MVFHC) is a private, non-profit, membership
organization in Dayton, Ohio. Its mission is to eliminate housing discrimination and ensure
equal housing opportunities for all people in its region, the State of Ohio, and nationally.

In late January 2023, the FHCCI contacted MVFHC regarding concerns about ‘no felony
convictions’ and other criminal history limitations observed on Barrington Group Inc.
property websites.

MVFHC began its investigation by identifying Barrington Group properties in Ohio. At
that time, MVVHFC identified five (5) market-rate multi-family housing communities and
one USDA Rural Development/Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) multi-family
housing community in Ohio managed and/or owned by The Barrington Group. MVFHC
conducted an initial review and investigation of the LIHTC property. However, the
application requirements were not posted on the website, and no availability was observed
during the period that MVFHC checked.

A review of the five market-rate Barrington properties in Ohio found that on each of the
five websites, in the “Rental Approval Requirements,” under a section labeled
“CRIMINAL SCREENING,” said: “All applicants will be thoroughly screened for



criminal activity. Misdemeanor convictions may result in denial of the rental application.
We absolutely will not accept anyone with a felony conviction.”

MVFHC next investigated how the “criminal activity policy” was explained and applied
to prospective applicants.

Barrington Square Apartments. On February 5, 2024, an MVFHC tester posing as a
Veterans Affairs Social Worker contacted Barrington Square Apartments. The tester spoke
with an agent about availability, rent prices, and application requirements. The tester was
told any applicant with a felony record would be denied. On February 6, 2024, the same
tester, using the same VA Social Worker profile, contacted Barrington Square Apartments
again for details on the misdemeanor policy. The tester was told applicants with level 2 or
3 misdemeanor convictions related to drugs, domestic violence, theft, or weapons would
be automatically declined, regardless of when the misdemeanor offense occurred. The
tester was told that if a person could show with court documents that the conviction was
removed from their record, even if it still appeared in the background check, they could be
considered for approval.

MVFHC continued its investigation. On March 26, 2024, two MVFHC testers contacted
Barrington Square Apartments to obtain additional information on the criminal history
policy. During a site visit, an African American tester volunteered that she had a 15-year-
old misdemeanor conviction. When asked for more details, the tester explained she had
tried to intervene during a family dispute, and when the police arrived, everyone present
was charged; rather than going to court, she paid the fine/ticket. The agent said she would
check with her manager and let the African American tester know if it would be a problem.
When the African American tester followed up, she was informed that anything assault-
related, whether a misdemeanor or felony, would be flagged by their system and rejected,
no matter how long ago it was to have occurred.

During a separate site visit, a White tester told the agent she had a second-degree
misdemeanor conviction seven years ago. When the agent asked for more details about the
conviction, the White tester explained it was related to allowing a family member to borrow
the tester’s car, and later, stolen property had been found in the car. The White tester told
the agent that an attorney advised her to pay the fine, and so she did. The agent said she
would check with her manager, who was unavailable that day. The White Tester followed
up and spoke to the property manager and was again asked the specifics of the conviction
and when it had occurred; the manager said some charges she could deny immediately and
others she could approve, but that was a difficult charge, and it would need to be discussed
with the regional manager. The White tester followed up the next week and left a message.
The next day, the White tester received a voicemail from the manager asking in what
jurisdiction the conviction had occurred so the court records could be located, as the
manager had been unable to find the public records to discuss the matter with the regional
manager.

Sussex Square Apartments. MVVFHC continued its investigation. On February 9, 2024, a
MVFHC tester posing as a Veterans Affairs Social Work contacted Sussex Square



Apartments. The tester was told any applicant with felonies or certain misdemeanors on
their record would be denied, no matter how far back in time the convictions occurred. The
Tester asked for more specific information on the misdemeanor convictions that would be
denied. However, the agent said they would have to see the application and any convictions
to determine what would or would not be allowed. The tester called back the next day,
February 10, 2024, and said they were helping someone with misdemeanor assault on their
record from four years prior and asked if that conviction would be allowed. The agent said
the applicant would be denied and that any assault conviction appearing in the background
check at any time in the applicant’s history would result in denial.

Raccoon Creek Apartments. MVFHC continued its investigation. On February 14, 2024, a
MVFHC tester posing as a Veterans Affairs Social Worker contacted Raccoon Creek
Apartments. The agent told the tester that applicants could have no prior felony convictions
and some misdemeanors could disqualify an applicant. The tester asked if there was a time
limit on when the felony appeared on the record; the agent stated that if the felony
conviction appeared on the record, regardless of the timeframe, it would prohibit the
applicant from being approved. The tester asked about misdemeanor convictions that
would disqualify an applicant; the agent said she had not noticed a great pattern of what
misdemeanors would result in denial. The agent stated she was unsure whether it was based
on the levels of misdemeanors or specific types but thought that violent or drug-related
convictions would be denied. The tester followed up the next day, noting she had additional
information on the potential applicant. The agent stated misdemeanor convictions
involving drugs or violence would disqualify an applicant, but other misdemeanor
convictions may be allowed. The agent noted a conviction from 20 years ago would
probably not result in denial. The tester next asked, hypothetically, if a marijuana
possession conviction from eight years ago would disqualify an applicant since state laws
on marijuana use and possession had changed. The agent stated she was unsure and was
not the person who always made the decisions; sometimes, applications were pulled at the
corporate level or by the property manager. The agent stated if the applicant was in the
process of having the conviction expunged from their record, it would help, and they would
likely approve an applicant if they could show court documentation but would otherwise
deny it.

Carnaby Village Apartments. MVFHC continued its investigation. On March 25, 2024, an
MVFHC tester, posing as a Veterans Affairs Social Worker, called Carnaby Village
Apartments. The tester inquired about the availability of units, rent prices, and application
requirements. The agent told the tester that the applicant could have no felony convictions,
and if they had misdemeanor convictions, they would have to talk with management about
it first. The tester asked what time frame was checked; the agent stated, “Their whole life.
Even if the applicant had a felony as a young adult and is 90 [years old], we still can’t take
them.” The tester asked for clarification on the misdemeanor conviction policy. The agent
said prospective tenants are advised to come in and ask about a misdemeanor conviction if
the misdemeanor is for running a stop sign or beating someone up. The agent said they did
not allow violent misdemeanors whatsoever, but nonviolent misdemeanors may be
considered if they talk with management about them first.



Somerford Square Apartments. MVFHC continued its investigation. On April 25, 2024, an
MVFHC tester initiated contact with Somerford Square Apartments. When the tester spoke
with an agent, they requested information on availability, rent amounts, and application
requirements. The tester was told any misdemeanor or felony conviction would prevent
approval. The tester asked if that was within a specific timeframe. The agent stated, “Not
really, it goes as far back as their adulthood,” adding, “anything that might show up in the
report from a person’s entire life, but some misdemeanor convictions they have overlooked
if they were very old or were not violent or theft related.” The tester confirmed that the age
of a felony conviction would not be considered and would result in denial. The agent said
if someone had a perfect rental history, a good job, and a good credit score and messed up
in 2001 by getting drunk outside, they would overlook it, “but I wouldn’t advertise that; I
would just say no misdemeanors and no felonies, you know because that’s our standard.”
The tester confirmed that older misdemeanor convictions unrelated to theft or violence may
be allowed, but not felony convictions. The tester asked if misdemeanor drug convictions
would be considered. The agent said she did not know and asked if most of those resulted
in felony convictions. The tester referenced recent changes in state marijuana laws that are
creating more gray areas. The agent said if the conviction were for something against the
law at the time, they would still consider that a violation, but they try to look at the whole
picture.

In the next part of MVFHC's investigation, staff examined whether a blanket ban on felony
convictions may disparately impact applicants based on race and/or national origin. Four
of the five tested properties are located in Franklin County. As of the 2020 census, Franklin
County, Ohio's population was 1,323,807, making it the most populous county in Ohio.
The City of Columbus is the county seat, the state capital and most populous city in Ohio.
African Americans make up just under 22.6 percent of Franklin County’s population but
represent more than 53 percent of the felony convictions between 2018-2022, while Whites
comprise almost 60 percent of the population and only 42 percent of the felony convictions.

The fifth property, Somerford Square, was located in Fairfield County. As of the 2020
census, 158,921 people resided in Fairfield County, almost 83 percent of residents are
White, 8.5 percent are African American and 2.5 percent are Hispanic or Latino. MVFHC
sought similar conviction data from the Fairfield County Clerk of Courts but was told the
clerk could not provide data on convictions broken down by race and ethnicity. However,
we do know Ohio has one of the largest prison populations in the country. According to
the U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs, in 2021, Ohio had the fifth-
largest prison population.t The American Civil Liberties Union (ACLU) of Ohio has found
that Black Ohioans are disproportionately affected — accounting for nearly half the state's
prison population but only a little more than a tenth of the total state population. The Vera
Institute of Justice found that in Ohio, Black people constituted 13% of state residents, but
34% of people in jail in 2015 and 45% of people in prison in 2017. The analysis by the
Vera Institute shows a history of very high rates of incarceration of African Americans
compared to the proportion of the population in Fairfield County. In 2021 the Prison Policy
Initiative found that Black Ohioans were imprisoned at a rate of 1,348 per 100,000
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residents compared to 244 per 100,000 for White Ohioans. MVFHC continues to seek
additional detailed data and will supplement the record as it becomes available.

Disparate Impact Discrimination

The Respondents’ policy is clear as documented in this complaint through the
investigations of the Complainants. The Respondent policies have a disparate impact
against Black renters across the Complainants’ service areas, as referenced in the April
2016 HUD’s Office of General Counsel’s Guidance on Application of Fair Housing Act
Standards to the Use of Criminal Records by Providers of Housing and Real Estate-Related
Transactions.

The Complainants allege that as a result of the Respondents’ policies and procedures of
enforcing overly restrictive felony and misdemeanor bans, Black applicants have been, and
continue to be, disproportionately harmed. Complainants have also been harmed by the
Respondents’ actions. Complainants expended resources to investigate and counteract the
Respondents’ practices, including through their testing and investigations. The time and
resources the Complainants spent investigating this matter diverted resources from their
other daily activities, such as education and outreach, client counseling, and community
development. Further, the Complainants allege the Respondents’ conduct has frustrated the
Complainants’ missions to rid their service areas of housing discrimination.

8. The most recent date on which the alleged discrimination occurred:
August 23, 2024 and ongoing

9. Types of Federal Funds identified:
None.

10. The acts alleged in this complaint, if proven, may constitute a violation of the
following:

Sections 804(a), (b) & (c), 42 U.S.C. § 3604(a), (b) & (c) of the Civil Rights Act of 1968
as amended, ef seq.

I declare under penalty of perjury that I have read this complaint (including any
attachments) and that it is true and correct.

/) i —
&) - Y August 30, 2024

Amy Nelson,/f: HCCI Executive Director Date
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(‘Z z ; August 30, 2024

Steve Tomkowiak, FHCMD Executive Director Date

August 30, 2024

im @Ahy, MVFHC President/CEO ] Date
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